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EDITORIAL

From the previous two issues of DECIES we have learned the
following rather obvious lessons : -

(1) Even the most fascinating articles lose, impact when economy is
the sole arbiter of format. Therefore & more expensive process
is necessary to do justice to our contributoers.

(11) This money can be found if we sell enough copies. The catch ofy
course is, that we cam'tsell enough unless we first produce a
sufficiently attractive magazine.

(111)Attractive format wont . sell by itself - there must alsc be
publicity and availability (i.e. retail outlets).

Therefore sales (and probably advertisements) are the key to a
more prestigious magazine for the Old :Waterford Society. We can produce
such a magazine if you, member, volunfeer your help, Specifically, we
need - :

(a) Honorary Business Managers who would .organise sales in local Book-
shops and news-agents and /or who would procur advertisements. Can
anyone contact emmigrant organisations ?

(b) Honorary P.R.0.'s who would ensure publicity.

(c) Honorary contributors. 8o far, almost all ocur articles have had to
be solicited orally. We are¢ now spliciting you reader, to contgibute
any snippets (up to & million words- we'll sérialize it !) of local
history you may have pickéd up from any source. This would include
legends; names of fields; details of threatened or destroyed liosanna
bothrirs ; buildings etca; local curios; queries; replies to questions
articles etc. etc. etc. i

“(d) Honorary Local Researchers - perhaps the most important function of

all. Please contact us if you have access to old business records
or memoranda of sny sort. If you know a wonderful old Man/Woman,
do commit to paper his/her reflections and recollections and let us
have them.

(e) Honorary National '~ Archives Researchers - this is.. the only job
for which you need a gqualification - time to spare in Dublin. The
National Archives, particularly in the State Paper Office, have a
graat wealth of unpublished material on Waterford. Anybody who
could spend even a day extracting and transcribing the references to
Waterford in-the indecxes would be doing a very valuable job.

Surely you can help in one of these five ways. No expertise is

» needed ~ just good will.  Dont leave it to others,but please contact one

of us now that the next copy of DECIES will be something we can all be
proud of. Contact -~ .

Des. Cokman, "Knockane", Annestown. (Phone 96157)
8r. Virginea,Ferrybank Convent ‘ (Phone 4112)
Noel Cassidy, "Lisacul", Marian Park (Phone 3130)

Our thanks to Waterford Corporation, The Teachers' Centre and
Rogur Garbett without whose help DECIES would not have been preduced.




LaiahluovaAaol Ll Al S8ANLLLD, U0, WATKRRPORD
AND THE FAMILIES OF POWER AND ANTHONY

By Hubert Gallwey.

In the last few months I have been investigating the history of sn area
near Bonmahon which comprises the townlands of Carrigeastle and Seafield
and, at ile outset, portions of other adjoining townlands as well. What
follows is not a écmplete record, but it may be of interest to some readers
to hear what has come to light ao far.

The district in question formed the estate of a family of Power
before the Cromwellian Settlement and was contained in the old parish of
Ballylaneen now united with Stradbally.

The first Power of whom I find record here was Richard, who must have
lived in the first quarter of the 16th century. His son Robert Moelle
(the bald) died in 1550 leaving a son and heir Pierce sged 22 at his
father's death and described as of Ballylaneen. Pierce was succeeded
by John Power of Ballylaneen, killed fighting for the Earl of Desmond in
September 1582, FHis son and successor Nicholas was then only three
months ¢ld, so therz was a long minority, and he did not get livery (poasess—
ion) till 1606. At this period the estate consiated of Ballylaneen,
Carrigeastle, Ballingarran and Garranincgs (Irish, CGarran na Fionnoige -
Grove of the Crow), the later Seafield: four townlands, all coaprised in
one parish of Ballylaneen.,

Nicholas Power died in 1627, apparently. leaving two sons, John, aged
18, who succeeded, and Pierce. By 1641 the lends had been mortgaged:
Garraninoge to John Sherlock of Gracedieu, and all the rest to Walter
Power, younger brother of John of Dunhill and Kilmeasden. In the Civil
Survey (1654) Pierce Power fitz Nicholas.is named ae heir to each of the
townlands - that is, if he could redeem the mortgage. Otherwise Power

‘and Sherlock would have kept their portions of the estate: The residence

was now evidently in Carrigcastle, not Ballylanmeen. Walter Power is always

described as of 'Carrigkisland' (Irish, Carraig a' Caisleain) so called

from a rock on which a castle of the Powers once stood.

The Cromwellian Settlement, of course, changed everything. The
lands were granted first to Sir John Ponsonby, anceston of the Bessboroughs,
who soon made an exchange for some other lands with Sir Thomas Oaborne
(knight), who was later the 5th baronet at Newtown Anner, near Clonmel.

It was socn after thls that the family of Anthony became associated
with Carrigeastle and adjacent townlands. In the 1670s or 1680s Sir Thomas
gave a lease of Carrigcastle to Peter Anthony, whose family had already
been in the locality -~ at Ballykeroge and at Ballydwan - for at least 40
years. Peter Anthony came to live in Carrigcastle ard died in, or shortly
before,1691. The list of outlawriea resulting from the Jacobite war
(1689 - 91) show that there were still members of the Power family - descen~
dants, presumably, either of Walter or of the criginal owners -: hanging
on in the area. Robert and Edward Power, both of Carrigcastle, appear
on the list,

In 1695 Sir Thomas Osborne gave a lease for three lives in perpetuity
to Mary, the widow of Peter Anthony, in fulfilment of a promise to her late
huaband. Whenever a life fell, the survivors could appeint another to
replace it upon payment of £30 to Sir Thomas and his heirs. Peter Anthony's
gon and heir Joseph had fought as a Jacobite right to the end, so was granted
the benefit of the Articles of the Treaty of Limerick, which meant that he
could inherit and pass on the lease that had been granted to his mother.



Joseph is described as of Carrigcastle in 1699, 1718 and 1T35, and wasg

dead by December 1739. His successor was his eldest son Peter, who

is said to have served in the Irish Brigade in France and to have fought

at Fentenoy. (A Captain Anthony of the lrish Brigade. certainly fought and
was killed, at Fontenoy: his name seems to have been Hichard. Peter could
have heen there too, but more likely he is confused with a brother named
Richard.) Peter 11 of Carrigcastle died 1lth October 1753 and is buried
in Bagllylaneen, where there is a tombstone with inscription, now very worm,
for him snd Catherine his wife, who died in 1782, and a couple of other
members of the family. Peter left very young children, so it was probably
their mother, a Barry of Lesmlars, Co. Cork, that took charge for almost
twenty years. She it would be who leased the lands of Garraninoge before
1775, comprising 255 acres, to one Hugh Power, whose origins we do not know.
He mey have been a descendant. of the original 17th century family. At

any rete he and his heirs held the townland for three or four generations,
Hie lesse was renewed by Joseph Anthony in 1782 for 61 years. Hugh
changed the name from Garraninoge to Seafield, and built a fine house on
the lands’, but we read in Finn's Leinster Journal of 24th March,1784 that
‘Barly on Saturday morning some villain or villains unknown set fire to

the house of Hugh Power of Carrigcastle Co. Waterford. I+ was entirely
consumed with almost all that it contained'. This was Scafield, not
Carrigeastle where the Anthonys were living. Hugh Power died in 1787,
Either he or his son rebuilt the house, and that is the Seafield House
you see today, the residence of Mr. Richard Hussell, Hugh'as eldest son
and successor at Seafield was Pierce Power who, in 1792, married Johanna,
daughter of HRoger Sweetman of Faree, Co. Wexford (parish of Newbacon).
Pierce was 8till at Seafield in 1800, but by 1814 he had made an exchange
of remidence with the Anthonys and we find him in Carrigcastle while Joseph
Anthony was now of Seafield. Joseph, however, moved intoe lodgings on the
Mall in Waterfosd in hia old age, and died there in 1824. The next head
of thet family was his son, Poter Standish Anthony, who had married in
1818 Susan Barron, a first cousin of Philip Barron, the scholar and
enthusiasst for the Irish langusge and literature. Sometime nol long after
hie father's death Peter Standish Anthony leased Seafield to Philip Barron,
who founded hias short-lived college for the study and revival of Irish

on the lands, (Jee article on FPhilip Barron in 2nd issue of this magaszine,
pp. '10-15.) A deed of December, 1836 shows Peter Anthony back in Seafield,
but Lewis's Topographical Dictionary, published in 1837, has Philip Barron
of Seafield in its list of subscribers. This would indicate that 1836
wag his last year in the district and that he moved out of Seafield before
the end of thoe year.

I

Meanwhile at Carrigcastle Pierce Power was succeeded by s second

Hugh Power, probably his son, berore 1820. Hugh is another subacriber
to Lewis's Dictionary, but he seems to have given place to gon or.young
er brother nsmed Pierce before Vecember 18%6, and to have settled at Bally-
goraey, Co. Kilkenny. Then in 1842 Peter Anthony leased the house and
demesne of Seafield to a certain William Power of Stradbally for 61 years.
I have not yet discovered whether this William was a relation of the Hugh and

Pierce Power already mentioned, but he probably was. Pierce Power had
evidently left Carrigcastle by 1842, because Peter Anthony was in residence
there already in that year. Peter Anthony died in 1856, His lease of
the estate in perpetuity passed teo his only child by his first marriage,
Sarah, an Ursuline nun in Waterford, the lands of Carrigecastle were dividaed
amongz two or more tenants and the residence there became dilapidated and
perhaps derelict during the nun's tenure.

William Power, who got Seafield in 1842, lived there till his death
in January, 1860. - He was a regular follower of the Curraghmore Hounds.
Hig wife and children died before him, so he was succeeded by his brother
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Patrick, who had been an excise Officer in Limerick. William had had
to mortgage his lease of Seafield, and the financial position was so bad
at his death that Patrick could only hang on for two years. He then
handed over to Mrs. Mary Arnne Power, widow of Lorenzo Power, ore of the

_.mortgagees, and she moved into Seafield with her only surviving son
Thomas Edmond Power, Again, I do not know if there was kinship between

thése in-coming Powers and the previous occupiers. Mrs., Mary Anne
Power, nee Wyse, was a sister of Sir Thomas Wyse, the well known diplomat,
educationalist and writer, who married a niece of the Emperor Napoleon 1.
Hence the name Bonaparte - Wyse used by his deacondants.

The son, Thomas Edmond, died in 1865, and Mrs. Mary Anne Power,
nee Wyse, in 1867. "The unexplred pertion of the lease of 1842 then passed
to a niece of her husband Lorenzo Power, a Lady S5t. George, living in South
Africa. Neither this lady nor. her son and successor (The male line of
the Powers of Bolendysert being now extinct, this son of Lady St. George,
being the second son, took the name Power) had any wish to come back and.
settle in Co. Waterford, and the latter sold his interest to the Land
Commission in 1895. Seafield House, therefore, became vacant in 1867,
and two years later the owner Sarah Anthony, the Ursuline nun, died,
leaving her property to her half-brother James Anthony, who accordingly
moved into Seafield in 1869. He married in 1872 Sarah Mary, daughter
of Richard Barron of Sarshville, and had two sons and two daughters.
He was made a J.P. for Co. Waterford in 1872, and he married secondly
a widow, Mrs, Mary Quinlan, who had two sons and a daughter.

James Anthony J.P. was drowned in a rough sea at Bonmahon on the
17th July, 1897 when bathing with his step-sons and the hushand of his
step-daughter. He had made no will. There followed a Lawsuit in the
High Court of Chancery between the second wife on the one side, and
James Anthony's two sons on the other. When Mrs. Anthony died in 1899
her place as plaintiff in the suit was taken by her son and executor
Lrthur Quinlan, It is not possible now to get the details of the case,
but it seems likely that the issue was the possession of Seafield -
the Quinlans wanting to retain possession, and the Anthony Brothers, Joseph
and James, wanting to eject them or at least to have a share. The
brothers had perhaps been successful in a lower court, so that the
Quinlans brought this ag¢tion in. the higher court. At any rate, by
order of the Master of the Rolls dated 17th May, 1901, the residence and
64 acres of Seafield were sold in February 1902, and the proceeds were
probably divided among the next of kin, who would be the sona and daughters
and the second wife, or her representative and heir, Arthur Quinlan.

The purchaser of Seafield in 1902 was Mr. James Richard Russell of
Glanmire House, Glanmire, Co. Cork. Included in the 64 acres sold was
a sub-denomination called Monaspesakeen. Mr. James Russell hunted the
district from 1906 to 1914 with his pack of hounds known as the Seafield
Harriers, and then took over the Waterford Hounds as Master from 1914
to 1925, and again in 1926, but died in December of the latter year.

His son Mr, Richard Russell, succeeded him at Seafield, and as Master,
and continued to hunt the county hounds till 1957. He is the present
owner and occupant of Seafield.

In the graveyard at Ballylaneen, in addition to the worn 18th century
tombstone slready mentioned, there is a headstone with an inscription fo
Commander Mark Anthony K. N., younger brother of Peter Standish Anthony of
Oarrigceastle, who sarved under Nelson at the Battle of Trafalgar (1805)
as the inscription tells you, and in several other naval engagements of

-
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the Napoleonic Wars, and finished his service as Harbour Master of
Dunmore Bast, then a naval appointment. He died on lst June,1867,
aged 81, in Catherine Street, Waterford.

IRISH SPEAKERS IN WATERFORD CITY

In 1881 in Waterford City 7 people prDILSSLd to be having no
English (Census figure). Ten years later there wiére still 7 peopln
who spoke Irish only. In 1901, however, the figure had jumped = to
24 1 Can anybbdy_explain this ?

One posalblllty is that some Gaclic League enthusiasts went so far
l as to "forget'" their English ‘completely when Her Magesty s census
enumerators called. Evidence of Gaelic revivalism in the city during
the 1890's is ampparent from the figures below, which make an interesting
contrast with the way Irish was declinimg all over the country as the
populatidn dropped rapidly.

1
L Waterford City ~ Waterford Cpunty
\ 1881 1891 1901 1881 1891 1901
| Those who spoke Irish only 7 7 2l 2,983 1,31k 453
Those who spoke Irish & 2,475 1,207. 2,116 = 46,132 34,951 29007
' Engliuh : '
Total who co% 1d chak 2,482 1,214 2,140 49,115 36,265 29460
I‘lSl o s
% population who could speak 11.1 5.8 8.0 sh.4 46,9  48.8
Irish : —

s MU GG L N G

| What can anybody tell us about smuggling along the Waterford coast *?
l A chance discovery in the Parliamentary Papers for.1824 (vol.xi),reveals
the' following information from the 1O0th Report of Commissioners of
Inguiry into Revenues arising in Ireland :-

| In September 1821 4 hauls of tobacco were made at Ballymacaw,
totalling 2 tons. Inthe following September, no less than 3z tons of
leaf tobacco were taken in one swoop of the islands of Kane, plus
another 13 tons further West at Bunmahon in the following week. In all
about 51 tons of leaf tobacco were captured from smugglers all over
Ireland in 1821 & '22, 8 of which were got in Waterford,

Does anybody know why_so much leaf tobacco and how was it sold 7
What else was being smuggled 7 How long did the smuggling ldst ?. Doesg
any tradition still s tell of smugpglers along our coast (e.g. there is

still "Port an Tabac" in Dunabrattin Huad.

DU NHIL L

Did anybody ever hear of glass being manufacturud at Ballynageeragh near
Dunhill, in the 16th Century 7. Also near Dunhhll at Cruach are ahort
{ adits of old mines. Can anvbody tell us anythlng about them.



T il January Lilo year vile liunster LXpress’ publlsiled an ariicle oy

the present writer on the surviving records of Waterford operative Bakers'
Societies in the last Century. The records dealt with covered the period
1822 to 1837. The wvolume of records-concerned (now in the care of the
Irish Labour History Society) ends at 1840. For that year the entries
are somewhat similar to those in the earlier records, giving items of the
Society's income and expenditure. For instance, there were two mortal-
ity payments ; for one, the widow received £5 and for the other, £3.1.6.
was paid to the next of kin. After one of the burials, there was the
item "6s.8d. for washing the pieces of the Society's funeral linen'.
Following the other burial was the item - '"5s.8d. for washing the
funeral linen''.

The payment for this service was one of the perquisites of the
Society's runner or "Beadle'", as he was called in the Limerick “perative
Bakers records of the time. Jerimie Gallavan was the Waterford Bakers
beadle for a few years up to and including 1840. That year, as in
previous years, another emolument was 8 shillings "for pairs of shoes'.
Other paid services of this official were associated with mortalities in
members families, such as the washing and robing of the corpse,providing
the Society's candle-sticks and linen as well as refreshments for the two-
nights' Wake. According to the Society's records, liquer at the time was
cheap at 1%}d per glass of spirits and 2d a Pint for beer.

From 1840 there is a gap in the records available till 1848. The
second volume of Waterford Operative Bakers records starts that year with
a statement of new rules for the Society. The revised rules .do not
differ much from the o0ld ones formulated in 1822 in the first volume of
records. The entrance fee was set at £4, but for members' son, after 7
years apprenticeship, £1.10.0. Sickness Benafit was 10 shillings weekly
for 12 weeks, mortality benefit to members next of kin was £5.

There follows another gap in the records until 1854, when a further
revision of the rules appeared. This version indicetes a new departure
in the provision of strike or dispute benefit, at a rate of 10 shillings
a week for 12 weeks for members - a sign that the Trade Societies at the
time were emerglng from the shadows of the Combination Laws. An other
indication of greater 1ndependance is manifest in this 1854 version in the
cohplata absence of any reference to Royal Acts or prescriptions in the
preamble to the Rules.

Yet another revision of the Rules in 1861 suggests that for some
interval befdre that date, the Society was in dissolution and had now been
revived. - The new Rules provided for weekly subscription of 1/- with more
modest benefits, perhaps indicating that the previous collapse was caused
by paying extravagant benefits. The same year, 1861, the Waterford
Society joined the National Campaign to abolish or ameliorate night -
baking. We have extant poster-size hand written petition from the
Waterford Operative Bakers soliciting the British Parliament for amelior-
ative legislaton. The Petition refers to the long working nights of
16 & 18 hours then common in the trade.

The Operative Baker's wages in Waterford, as in most provincial
towns at the time, was 3s.4d. a night or 20 shillings a week. In Dublin
it was a few.shillings a week more. From this time, much of the action
of local operative Bakers' Societies throughout the land was centred on
establishing a National Trade Union. The Waterford Operatives were active
and played their part in several attempts in the 60's and 70's to broaden
the base of organisation. It was not however, until 1889 that the local
societies, including the Waterford Operative Bakers , came together fto
form the Nation Federal Union of Bakers and Confectioners.
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WAL R UKD 5 MBRUHANLS  ANL  bBURJBAUX

By : Mrs. B. Mc Henry

Waterford's direct connection with Bordeaux goes back to the
14th Centurye. In 1333 Edward TIT ordered 600 Barrels of wine for
his war in Ireland, 400 for Dublin and 200 for Waterford. In the
following year a quantity of wool and leather from Waterford was
confiscated in Bordeaux as Waterford had no charter to export wool.

We have no direct evidence for the continuation of this trade
in the following two Centuries, but in 1597 we find a man from
Bannow , Adam Hodo (or Archdeacon) in residence there and petition-
ing for naturalisation. Six years after this the Irish College was
founded and by 1678 we find the daughter of an Elizabeth Baron being
baptised at Bordeaux.

In 1711 Louis xiv was given a list of 68 merchants from
Northern countries living in Bordsaux. Of the eight Irish, five
were from the Waterford hinterland - three from the city and one
each from Carrick and New Ross. All had settled there since 1686
and were described as butter or tallow merchants as well as shop |,
assistants or clerks . '

Une of these would have been Thomas Walsh of Waterford,
naturalised in 1709, who beciame a Bourgeocis de Bordeaux. His
daughter married a member of another Bourgeois family - the Lees.
He bought himself a country estate outside Bordeaux and his sons
made several trips to the West Indies.

It would thus appear that some merchants began as agents for
Waterford agricultural export firms in Bordeaux, but like Thomas
Walsh did quite well in their own right, getting involved in the
Transhipment of Irish meat and tallow to the French West Indies and
possibly in the export of Bordeaux wines and brandy back to Ireland.

Perhaps another aspect of the Waterford connection is exemplified
by the extraordinary carecer of a nephew of the Bishop of Waterford,
Joseph Rivers of Dungarvan. He apparently had to abandon his studies
in Potiers when his father got intec trouble at home for recruiting.
for the Irish Brigade. He became a clerk with the widow.Quin inm
Bordeaux in 1745, and never rose higher than book-keeper with various
Irish families there. .

Throughout the 18th Catury, we find quite a large Irish Commun-
ity building up in Bordeaux, consisting of not only merchants, their-
servants (including a Nicholas White of Wexford),tailors, coopers,
inn-keepers, doctors, etc. There was even an Irish artiste
Sculptor, a Patrice Power, Towards the end of the Century however,
Waterford!s share in this trade seemed to have declined consider-
ably. In 1785 - '87, of the 43 ships recorded as coming to
Bordeanx from Ireland, only one was from Waterford, the majority
of the others being from Dublin and Cork. Perhaps Waterford
Merchants were now finding the Newfoundland provisions trade more
remunerative
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The ~urpose of this article, and of the preceding one, is not to
reveal new insights on the life of Donncha Rua Mac Conmara, the Irish
Scholar / Poet of two hundred years ago, but, more modestly, to recount
a 20th Century traveller's quest for some of the places associated with
him

In the last issue of "Decies", I dealt with the area arocund Sliabh
gCua where Donncha lived up to the 1740's when he married and moved to
Youghal, The period from 1745 to 1759 contains no information as to
his whereabouts although it is assumed that he was teaching schocl in
and between Waterford and Kilmacthomas and was possibly in Newfoundland
for some time. I have heard that a regular haunt of his was the Yellow
House on the Cork Road , which is still going strong (though in a
different guise). Incidentally, a map of 1764 does not show a road
where the modern highway from Manor Street to Ballinaneeshagh now runs.
Presumably the 18th Century traveller to Cork left via the Kilmeaden
Road.

In 1759, we know that Donncha was teaching in a school in Ardeenlone
about ten miles from Waterford, which he called Ath-na-Scoile. To
find the site, you make for Haughtons Pub (using it as a landmark only!),

and turn South. Before you come to the railway crossing you can climb
over the wall on your right and into a meadow which slopes down to the
Dawn River. A stout pair of boots will help you cross the river,little

more than a stream at this point - there used to be a ford here, hence
the name of the school. The remains of an old building can be seen,
covered in brambles - surely the site of the school (if it isnt, dont
disillusion me). Canon Power in 1911 referred to a blackened gable
close by the railway line ncar the level crossinge.

Donncha issued a notable document to one of his pupils at this time.
It is called the '"Pass to Richard Fitzgerald the Gallant'- a letter of
introduction we would call it today. It is a mixture of outrageous
flattery, detailed commands to potential hosts and scurrilous sarcasm
about some of his fellow-teachers. Here is an excerpt from &
Te O'IFlannghaile's translation

"Whereas there has come to Ath-na-Scoile the gentle voiced talker
and the accomplished , famous. clever, heroic, valiant, sturdy, broad-
chested,performer and the active, swift-footed, expeditious messenger-
and the very witty,very rcady, very clear narrator - and the quick,full
spirited swordsman who is called the gallant Richard Fitzgerald loarning
the exercises,sciences and various arts of the schools,and constantly
wooing the lovely maids of Moun! Parnassus, namely, the nine sweet
spirits who sit on the bank cr Lelicons stream, ever bathing Irish
poets in the fountain of the bards. For these reasons I command every
heavy-hoofed, hoarse grumbling hag, every cross, complaining,vixenish
virago,every pinching,poor nouthed rustic,and every badgerlilkeblundering
churl from Credan Head to the Plain of Cashel, and from Lismore to
O'Bric's Island, and thence hither beside the sea or beside a plain,
tc show no grudging, to give no refusal, to offer no opposition to the
hero aforesaid, the gallant Richard Fitzgerald cccceccsa'

And so it goes on, finishing with thundering invective against the
schoolmasters "Christopher Mac Heavybottom, Giddyhead O'Hackett,Coxcomb
O'Boland,Tatter O'Flanagan,Dirty, puffy John "'Mulrooney,Blear Eye O'
Cullenan and Giggler O'Mulcahy, inasmuch as these have nct hLo-n steeped
nor tested in the elements or beauties of learning or of true knowledge,
but are ever spoiling and ever quenching the minds of the young who
therefore have neither Latin nor good manners. "
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house where he lived stiTi" L%aqﬁ “oh 'the farm of David Shanahan,about
a guarter of a mile south of Whltb stown Cross Roads. It was indeed
from 1831 up to about ten years ago, the home of the Shanahan family,
until the present owner reluctantly but., - if you see the house,; you
will understand, of necessity - had to move out to his new home built
adjacently.

What a magnificent Georgian mansion it was, and still is despitc
the ravaggs of time. Three storied, with three enormous rooms on each
fleor; the stonework is stylish, the preoportions are eclegant, but the
house is completely uneconomic to maintain. It is set on an emimence
and- eommands -a wonderful view of the countryside towards Portlaw. In
fact o local story has it that Ducket once boasted to the then Lord
Waterford that he could see much more of Curraghmore Estate then tHe -
proprietor himself - which is perfectly true ! . Ducket's daughter,
Ruth, is buried in Mothel graveyard

The central room on the first fleoor above the main entrance is
graced by a lovely arched window and was apparently Ducket's drawing
TOOM, Could we imagine Donncha and his host discussing and discoursing
inte the late hours. 1t was in this room also that Donncha - or his
apostate friend William Power of Ballyvoile (experts disagree !)
fell into a drunken doze and woke to find the family's pet goat

' represgnting as he thought, the Prince of Darkness,horns,cloven hooves

‘and all, butting him into repentance.. Repentance , in Donncha's case,
Iuoul¢ Ln ‘addition, te the;excesses of his life, need to cover hisg action
in }?65 of recantlng his religion to.become the clerk of the Protestant
Chuxgh,;u Rossmire outgide Kilmagthomas. Economic ne¢cessity, rather
than conviction, is interpreted as the motivating factor here; as he'!
had & brood of hungry children to feed. The church still stands.

His declining yesars were spent in the Newtown. area,two miles from
Kilmacthomas. A local pub is named after him but I doubt if he would
recognise it now. Halfway between this village and Carroll's Cross
there is an interesting item which should be regarded with more than a
few grains, indeed with a packet of salt. In the hedge at the side of
the road there is a large slab with the initials D.M. and the date 1811
(or could it be{Q877 ?) carved on it. It is c¢laimed that Donncha was
seen carving his initials in the stone. As he had been laid in his
grave in 1810, being then 95 years of age and blind into the bargain,

I doubt if the claim will bring the historians clamouring toc the- spot.

In Newtown graveyard lie the bones of Donncha Rua, his memory still
vibrant, which betokens the grecat cccentric which he was. There wvere
many places [ had neither the time nor the facility to locate. Perhaps
now some reader would know : where was Claney's of Kill, Carrolls of
Carriganure, Peter Kennedy's of Whitestown ? With regard to James
Bawn Power of Ballyvoholane, to whosc children Donncha was tutor, would
he have lived in Georgestown beside Tom Mc Grath's Any stories of
Lonncha in Newtown apd of his son, Young Donncha, the weaver @ His ¢
friendship with fellow poet, Tedhg Gaelach O'Sullivan ?

Over to you

Huprn 0% A

P N W



| paodn cf e ~etag rere W el moshern

pp— W —— =l = e e vt S W R R e T AT

The freicty mot ot Duaabrattin whore thay were teld of the effarts of
the !-‘.’.f.n.mg Gonmaeny of Irolonyl €n develop lead nines im noarby Annectown in
tac 3 0% co wl. ac of Cho crpl-.:*rntwy' edits in di2idpvent pnris nf the
adjrac*:t hontlond,  Prococding wenS, the Secicty stopped at Tankecdrtown

v ol lsopent "d AL :u‘:\::. cf The oncine kouse therc, as wcll ac the chafto

cnl“* visll oy fneludins a LPro eollapoed arca.  The opealer indicatod the
Upe of 'v::‘.“ "y which brrushl tho ore to the dreceinps yerds and the
Sectetm Ot Dol mued (N poe/l parzallol to Cho railway cutting as %ar an

g i S o

2% Egocimohin tharfredct ognin Aoraeccted sece of tho edafsn,elits,
caplna Rotroc, o~ S0 eopper~yard khore the ore was convayod by cantty to
tho £in Delow £or Coaashipreat $0 Swanntca.  Continuweing towerds DPunnchen,
tie momctro mnsanbidi'led necr thn childron's playground onm the nite of the
old On~rndng Lloewne  Bore iz vhbdoksvhosls jireve tha pusping equlpnent, s

l ealk o1 e govrNinz rtamps,Ypatoat separators™ amd various etheor cachiner.

™o rdns of ¢rmn o7 cosanierar tuildlans ware cacnentod emy o0 vell es
thy vont cone=s <% Nt =4y saterdial o641l covidents

Ganel it ne, “ha gposker "uzgostd ctind

ehoh 18N, *a oirdit « 2 parlicnlar thn

eIA vorkinrg o8 Urennem e and coruse of
™ ""‘""""""l under vSieh a wator channol
ba 7 g o8

! """"’1

Ny (ﬁ,rf’v
I\ Q"o

T ' -
g &ggﬂﬂi(n# g

0TZI0 70 CLOTITHDS AND BANTIOY ( <o //*76) LhES. Vil

L i IR

f~onkerrs ¢ Pro Tofe Mutlor & Mre Themas ¥nleh

At Clor—*—~~ I'~&hrr Butlor ce = ntod on
tracitinnnl banial that cilvoer and tia bhad
beca pinod bope ewan Palamg o caning of
the Dozanrs tul At L€ 1~ Th0 Intler wheo,
pamAemimaet mWY EoSad theapelves in strengsth 5 u\*wml \
in the TL3icAGrr~ne="% to exploit t-o ' ‘Comd b
rinen anAd ontSablishad,onthe enpcm‘.‘r{v’ntem} Chiar ’5"‘“‘"’5’5
rhart of Panrew Ocy, a troding ehall fa : Caskle”,
thet ceoviTed o comn co:tnr.,?z_w.,,wt uhich : o -

n ~h of Lo sz e :::

dded out vhom the romth of (0~{armer) 'Ewﬁl o "_"""-"‘ = L =t

hardour oilied ey gleing rioe to the
present ceafl g-.u-nticn of tho Ba~e

- Hembere imapected thko sm-viving ruins
vhich imolude thozse of en Augmastiniar
Prierd,a naplah church,tvos cantles and a
umicto Mnilding thet prosents tho external
eppesenca of c. Farrsn keep or cartila Bnt

(Y 4 e ﬂh B} ;
Dome s ) MR e Ci_m et
Anse L pan antensiitn e7er holf thn [loer TR - §

ol «.nf" o lotz taopnd vanlt over tha other.



e e g i

12

Particular interest centred on the priory which was buill around
1317, altered and enlarged in 1384 and believed to have been one of
the fimest of the Irish Augustinian foundations. Clonmines must
have been a thriving town when the priory was built. It was served
by the -Hermits of St. Augustine (not the Canons Rtgular) who were
‘brought -to Ireland in prc Norman times. It suffered dissolution
in 15 44. ;

.The mines (on the Bannow side of the bay ) seem never to have
beeg worked with any real suecess. They were taken over by the Crown
in-1546 and were operated for -a few years - at one time by Dutch miners
but not enough silver was won from them te justify a continuance of
the effort. - An attempt to re-activate them in 1840 proved abortive.

The surviving chimney and adjacent building are a memorial of this
attempt.

Later in the afternoon, members crossed over to Bannow where Mr.
T. Walsh (Vice Chariman) addressed them from within the substantial
remains of the fine church which served, and is now the socle physical
reminder of the once flourishing town of Bannow which prior to the
Union could send two burgesses to represent it in Parliament. The
town suffered decline through loss of trade and ultimately disappeared
completely, save for the church, It is a matter of conjecture whether
or to what extent its demise was due to engulfment by blown =sand, as
is commonly believed, or to disintegration by time and the elements,

removal of building materials for re-use and a subsequent take-over
by naturec. ' ,

The visit to Clonmines was by kind permission of the land-owner,
Mr., Cohb,

OUTING TO LICKETSTOWN AREA (4/7/'76

Speaker : Mr, Edward Walsh
(This much-esteemed member of our Society has since passed to his

L raward. We offer our condolences to his family)

The Speaker indicated to members the -unusual disposition of
houses which Licketstown shared with Moonveen and Glengrant, and
poesibly with four other villages in the area. The layout seems
to indicate the survival of the rundale system of farm in the area
until relatively recent times. Indicating that the houses have
changed little since then the speaker showed members roof trusses
of unsquared timber jointed only with dowels, and how many house
walls were built without foundations.

Members were then brought along the elevated "Hass path" still.
in use between Moonveen and Glengrant, and were later shown a sectlon
of the- longer path to Carrigeen whcch included a gap. brldged by a
large llntel stcne as well as a "mass bush" nearby. ..

v

“An-unusual and most interesting feature of this outing was a

dlesson on thatching with river reeds by Mr. W. Walsh and accounts

of local lore by Mr. Thomas O'Keeffe.




e ———e%

4

OTHER  OUTINGS &  VISITS,

Ve intend to carry reports of our finagl three outings in Decies 4.
For our outing to Clonmel on 13th June we recommend members to read
"Clonmel” by Shee & Watson (see Decies 2)

Following our visit to Christ Church, the speaker there, Mr. J. Chambers
has been kind enough to submit the following article:-

CHRIST  CHURCH  CATHEDRAL

By Jd. Chambers.

The Cathedral of the Blessed Trinity, commonly called Christ Church
Cathedral was built between the years 1773 - 1779. This present Cathedral
replaced the o0ld and venersble building which stood for so long on that
same site. Historiens are prone to assume that its demolition was "to
the everlasting shame of the citizens of Waterford". TYet on reflection
we find that on the 14th July, 1773 a Committee appointed by the Council
of the Corporation, together with the Bishop, the Dean, the Chapter, and
the CathedralSelect Vestry decided on the demolition. Having inspected
two of the Vaults belonging to the old Cathedral, it did not surprise the
writer that the building was due Tor replacement.

Ware, in his writings, stated that no Vaults existed. He was wrong.
There are vaults and sometime in the future they may be opened for
historical inspection.

This Cathedral opened for public worship in 1779 and was capable of
hélding eleven hundred people, It was built in the English Classic style
of the 18th century with total length of 170 ft, and breadth 58 ft. The
aisles are divided by a double row of columns which support galleriea
North South and West. The Architect of course, was Robherts.

This then was the building which survived intact until the first
restoration in the 1890's when the Architect Sir Thomas Drew, advised
certain alterations in order to reduce the sevarity and sombreness of
the interior. _ Galleries were removed; leaded lights replaced the
0ld clear glass windows: ., Prebendary's Stalls were put in the Chancel;
a much smaller Bishop's Throne was installed; a new pulpit and Baptismal
Font replaced the old carved pulpi* and font which took pride of place
at the entrance to the choir.

Looking back now one regrets features of this restoration, particul-
arly the removal of the galleries, and the closing up of the lower tier
of windows, but it is expected that as far as possible the second restora-
tion will correct some of the errors of 1890.

To the visitor, this historic building has much to offer, as the ald
Cathedral Memorial Tablets and Tombs are there, The most noted Tomb is



—————— =

P ——

——

L

e e

=t

that of James Rice. On this Tomb is the effigy of Rice in light relief

lying on his back carved as if it were in a decayed state. Figures of

Saints, Apoastles, et represented around the sides of the Tomb.

James Rice died abou ¢ had bLeen many times Mayor of Waterford
own is there too "By kind permission" !

The lesgend of this tcmb is of great interest and in simple language

means. "one day, rou will Ioo liks this, so mend your ways".

™
1456
Br

and his wif:, Catherine B

The cor’raversial Tomb of Strongbov is there too, with his wife, Hva
nccupyins 2 very lcJgly positiun.

Bishgp's Foys Tomb is another that calls for observation. It's
Memorial "Tablet is quite exircordinary. The Bishop stipulated £30
funeral erpenana - £5 to his kinuman Thomas France for preaching the
funeral oration, provided that nothing good or bad was said in that
Oration.

et proat and goed man, Thomas France, Chanter of the Cathedral
1 al the Bass end of 8%, Oilaf's Church, and his is the Tomb
that can = seen froa the road.

The other Memorials of inverest are the Fitzgerald's and the
Masona. Phe fermer is to o certain Pitzgerald of King's
Meadou and Jahn Fitzgerold, Gity of London, aucestors of the Island
Fanily of that namc.

The Maren Hororial is to Susannih Mason, deughter of Sir John
llasem, Yovadiress of o emall school known as the Mason Schoel, and
buried with ibe rext of the llason family in the now defunct 5t. John's
Church. The Reredes in the Cathedral are thought o be erected in
Susannah's nmemory and its three panels should be closely observed,
the symbolisie teing galte interssting. '

The gooond recloration is ne. pracending and we lool forward to o
reatored bLuilding vorthy of the City of Waterford,

—— e — | —
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VISIT To FLRANCISCAN FRIARY (24.6.1976)

e e et v o w—

Arising oul of fthz interest supressad by the members of the 01d
Waterford Society, the Speaker, Fr. Ignativs Fernessey 0.F.M. has been
kind enough to szubmit the ariicle following on pages

The Guotations are taken from Pr. Canice Mooney's artiele "The Franciscans

in Waterford" published in Vols. LXIS of the Journal of the Cork
Historical and Archssclogical Society (1964
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By Fr. Ignatius Fennessy O0.F.M.

The old Franciscan friary at Waterford. (known as Grey Friars or the
French Church) was founded about the year 1240 by Hugh Purcell, an Anglo-
Norman knight. The Lady Chapel there and the tower were later additions,
Up to 1521, the friars there were Conventual Franciscans. Since then they
have not been established in Ireland. After them, the "Brown Friars" took
care of the Waterford friary - just in time to be thrown out in 1540!

Documents show that alms from the Royal Exchequer were granted to
the friars at Waterford from 1245 to 1355. In 1395, King Richard 11-
received there the submission of Turloch O0'Conor:Don of Connaught,
William De Burgo of Clanrichard, Brian and Dermet O'Brien of Thomond
and the two O'Kennedy chieftains of Ormond. :

"Two friars of Waterford noted for their sanctity of life were
Nicholas, who foretold the day of his death, and John, at whose tomb many
miraculous cures took place." They lived in the 13th and 14th centuries.

"The old ‘friary was suppressed in April 1540, the last Guardian at
the time being Fr, John Lynch." Earlier, on Sunday, March 10, 1538,
Friar Sall of Waterford had preached against the turning of churches
into profane places. He was imprisoned in Dublin Castle. "He may or
may not be the same friar who was hanged in his habit at Waterford in
January 1539 for alleged theft.”

The site of the friary was leased to Lord Grey, the Lord Deputy for
Ireland. But he was executed by Henry V11 in 1541. "On August 15, 1544,
a merchant of Waterford, Henry Walsh, obtained from King Henry V11l a charter
of incorporation of the Hospital of the'Holy’Ghost of Waterford, he ‘himself
to be the first Master, with 3 or 4 secular priests as Brethern, and at least
60 of the sick and infirm poor of both sexes to be found wandering in the
city." (Note that.the persecution was directed first against the houses
of the religious, the friars, ete.). "Great wooden beams, at a height of
about 12 feet, were laid across the Church, and on this the hospital was
built.” "The nave and the Lady Chapel were both used." But not the
choir or sanctuary. Franciscana offered the Holy Sacrifice there in
secret. "An official document of 13 September 1600 complains that in
Waterford there were certain buildings, 'erected under ecolour and pretence
of almshouses or hospitala, but the same are in very deed intended and
publicly professed to be usad for monasteries and such like houses of
religion, and friars and popish priests are openly received and maine
tained in them'. Burials of outpiders, and sometimes of friars, continued
to be made in the nave below, in the choir and the adjoining Lady Chapel".

"An informer's report of about the year 1610 states that Nicholas Walsh
(who was a TFranciscan priest) was living in the Holy Ghost Hospital."
Father Luke Wadding, the most famous Waterford Franciscan tells us that
when he was a boy, the body of a holy friar who had died in 1597 was later
reburied in the old friary and found to be in-corrupt.. Another buried there
(1614) was Donagh 0'Daly, a friar who (according to Wadding) left & reputa-
tion throughout Ireland for admirable integrity, singular prudence and
praise-worthy innocence.”



|
|
1
|
|
|
|
|

16

At the Hospital in the old friary, "repairs and enlargements were
carried out in 1741 and 1743, but, as the building was again falling
badly into ruin about 1878....it was decided to erect 2 more commodious
and suitable building on the Cork Road."  "S5ix statues in Oak, of various
sizes, moat of which probably belonged to the pre-Reformation friary, were
also tranaferred tc the new building. Amopg them sre representations of
Christ, OQur Lady, St. Stephen and St..John-thé Baptist. Also transferred
were an alabaster statue of St. Catherine and a sandstone head of St. John
the Baptist. " (See C. MeLeod in R.S,s.I.Jn., 1xxvi,89-100,1946)

In 1685, King Louis X1V of France revoked the BEdict of Nantes - a
peace settlement between Catholics and Protestants. * French Protestants
were attacked, and had to leave France. Some fled to Irelend; "and
Waterford Corporation, at a meeting of 27th March, 1673, passed a resolu-
tion to provide habitatione for 50 families of them, to start a linen
industry". . "The Protestant Bishop, Nathaniel Foy, had the choir of the
0ld friary church fitted up {or their religious services, and they continu-
ad to use it until about 1815. It was from thie period that it acquired
the name of The French Church". "By February 1713 the Huguenots had al-
ready conformed to the worship and discipline of the Church of Englend."

"Meanwhile, how did the Franciscans fare after their expulsion from
Grey Friars ? We have seen that some continued to be sheltered surrept-
iously in the Holy Ghost Hospital.”  Some were buried there. Others
lived quictly with relatives and friends, secretly doing their priestly
duties. "From time to time young Waterford men, who had joined the Order
on the continent, returned to share the task of keeping their religion and
Order alive in théir notive City." : '

The records show an unbrokun succession of Guardisns or loczl superiors
appointed to Waterford from 1612 to the present day. Fr. Canice Mooney
states as well: "As far as can be ascertained, there has been no generation
from 1240 until our own times during which there have not been natives of
Waterford in the Franciscan Order." Today there are four trom the City.

At the time of the successes of the Confederation of Kilkenny ,
Waterford was wholly Catholic again, a "little Rome", and there weré 15
Franciscans there. An enthusiastic letter from the Guardisn, Fr. Thomas
Strangs, dated the 26th Deccémber 1642, says that they were back in the old
friary, celebrating Mass and prenching (also in the Cathedral). They
were building e dormitory in the old friary, for the 15 Triars, whom he
names: Thomas Strange, James Maddan, Peter Brenan, Nicholas Strange,
inthony Purcell, Matthew Sharpe, Augustine Gall, John Everard, James Gibbg,
Francis Woodlock,Peter Strange, and Nicholas Ledwich - all priests; Peter
Canal =nd Francis Motal - Cleries; and Thomas Phelan, a lay brother. -

Then came disaster, in the shape of Cromwell and Ireton (1650)
By 1672 there were only 4 Franciscan priests and 1 lay brother in the city.
They had a:little Chapel somewhere, preached regularly and led a community
life. Bishop John Brennan (5t, Oliver Plunkett's friend) was worried about
their "too much daring"; 1t could "irritate the Government and provoke
fresh anti-catholic edicts." In 1678 there werc threc priests. "They
conducted n Confraternity at the monthly meeting of which there was a ;
considerable attendsnce of men and women.,"  In 1687, in the days of King
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and were beginning, it seems, to reustore their old friary. " "It was
decided formally to 1nst1tute & novitiate in the friary of Waterford"
Vcry daring.

When the Treaty of Limerick was broken, the darkest days of all came.
but, "true to thelr tradltlon of much daring", they were soon back again.
In 1731 it was reported that there was a Mass-house in the parish of
3t. John's, in which 3 friars officiated.” In 1744 Waterford had a
Franciscan as bishop, Sylvester LLoyd. Thirty-three years later, we find
them well esgpbllshed in Johnstown. In fact, Fr. Felix Cleary, O.F.M.,

wds parish priest of St. John's about 1745: and Fr. Thomas Bacon, 0.F.H,,

was ‘associated with that parish in 1759. Their house is = said to have
been on the site of the old Turkish Baths on South Parade: (then, Hardy's
Road), around Nos. 8 and 9 on the upper side today. Their church was %

' -probably nearer the-cornér of South Parade and Water Street.

- "Since the final destruction of the Benedietine priory church of
St. John, which stood at the corner of Manor Street and Parliament Street,
there had been no church in the parish of S5t. John. The secular clergy
of that parish used to rent the Franciscan church for their own services.
The rent was a guinea (a Vear)..... In 1800 the friars secured possession
of a disused Quaker meeting house on the site of the present Christian
Brothers' school in Manor Street. The building, duly fitted up, did
duty as a church until the present St. John's church in Parnell Street
was opened in 1850."

"About 1830 the Franciscans decided to move nearer to their original
foundation....They bought a piece of land in Lady Lane corresponding aprox-

.imately to that occupied in medieval times by St. Mary's chapel and grave-

yard, and in later times first by a Dissenters' chapel, then by a theatre.
The friars had the theatre demolished, and the foundation stone of the new
church was - laid...It was not as large as the present church, since a
Protestant day-school stood at the back. The church terminated with a
blank wall, sbout 25 feet from thé present altar-rails, -The present St.
Joseph's altar, with & statue then of Qur Lady, was the High Altar. To
compensate for lack of ground space, galleries were erected at the back

‘and sides of the church. A public laneway giving access to the school
‘and some houses at .the back ran beside the church, just where the pressnt

passage leads to the sacristy. - The friary was built on the north side.
The community went into residence on 18th September 1833".

"In the year 1905, Fr. Cornelius Francis Begley, Guardian, thanks
to the helpfulness and kindly cooperation of the Protestant Bishop,
Dr; Henry Stewart O'Harg, succeeded in acquiring the premises of the

-adjeining Protestant National School for £450 in order to extend the

church During the negotiations, at times troublesome and involved,
whlch lasted from November, 1901 to June, 1905, the Catholic Bishop,

Dy, ‘Richard Sheehan, also gave the friars every support and encouragement..

In 1908 the work was completed, a graceful bell-tower being added...The -
Protestant-sgchool "stood on the actual site of the 0old medieval Phurch or -

,Chapel to Qur.Lady, that is ; on the site approximately of the sanctuary

" of the present ahiurch. The original foundations were discovered when

the achool wae demalished, and the plan, drawn by Mr.Thomas Scully,
Architect, is now preserved in the friary."
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This was lined with timber on all sides but water could seep into the
pit. Pieces of flesh would. next be wrapped in dried grass or hay and
placed in the pot. ' Em 'order to heat the water pre-heated large stones
would be dropped in, Keéeping the water boiling. This was actually
done experimentally in 1937 in ovens in Co. Cork and produced palatable
food almost as quickly as a modern cooker would.

During all- this procesgs,/pieces. ' were constantly chipping off
the heated stones, these chippings together with burpt. charcoal,were
pushed to one side forming into a 'mound which in time became quite
a sizeable heap. This.in-turn: became the cooking sité'or Fulachta
as we know it today. = Experts say that the black charcoal dust will
remain apparent inthe ground for 500,000 years approximately.

In very wét conditicns, as in bogland, it is possible to unearth
the cooking pit with the timber in situ -~ but the nature of the wood
long since changed. This was clearly seen at a dig carried out by
National Museum personiiel 'at Ballyknock near New Ross last year.

Again in soft bogiahd-many of those cooking sites became submerged
to a depth of up to 6 feet as we fouhd at Crook, Co. Watefford.

Alas, in the Ferrybank district only the spread-out romains of the
Fulachtai are to be found, with the possible exception of one or two
in the Christendom area at the source of the streamlet that today flows
through the sewage ducts of Clover Meats factory on its way to jpin the
Suir. Incidentally, this same water supply was much used by the ships
of the great shipping era of the last century in Waterford.

WATERPFORD''S ROADS

The following figures are taken from the-Reéport of the County
and District Surveyors in 1837 from the Parliamentary Papers. In
Waterford County 24 miles of roagiwere built in 1834 ;but only ome
mile was built in 1854. The gonc¢entration that year was on
maintenance. when £10,000 was gpetit on the 1,000miles repaired (£10 per
mile) as againét-oHly 224 miles repaired im 1834, but at a cost of
£20 per mile. . An-extra £2,000 was spent on bridges and gulleys

" in 1834 while 30 years later an extra £500 had been spent on these.
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Has anybod% got more information about specific roads, bridges,

uCﬁftingsetc,; when they were made and.at what cost 7 This could

have'.been got f¥om the Grand Jury Presentiments but mosﬁnof_these
warefﬁestroyad in the P.R.0. in 1922,sd'we must now rely;malnly on
locaLf;ecorda or traditions. : "

B



THE CAMF SITE AT KILBARRY

One always associates the Ordnance Survey of
Ireland with an extremely high standard of
accuracy but in the case of the Name Book
description of the Kilbarry camp site quoted
in the last issue of "Decies" it would seem |
that Homer nodded. "A large circular fort"
hardly corresponds with what was shown on

the original sheet of 1844 or the later 1/2500
survey. Fart of the 1950 revision of sheet
12.VII is reproduced {(under licence) to
illustrate the point,
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b | the hnights o1 Labour 1in WAateriord. 1t was an American Laobour
" Organisation founded in 1869, four years after the termination of the
American Civil War, and one of it's first leaders was Uriah Stephens.

“ At this time Trade Unionism was at a less developed stage in the U.8.A.
than it was in Britain. In the early part of the 19th Century,during

Y the Industrial Revolution, a Briton who found himself working in one of

4 "the dark Satanic Mills" (Robert Owen's expression, I think ! ), had no

option but to combine with his fellow workers in a Trade Union in order
3 to improve his lot. The American on the other hand, could always '"go
West". At the time of the Civil War, Trade Unions in the U.S.A. were
mostly craft and were organised on a local basis, e.g. New York Carpen-
d ter's Union, Chicago Butchers etc. The Knights of Labour was the- first
attempt at organising Trade Unionism on a nationwide basis - and it also

h aimed at organising unskilled workers as well as craftsmen. In fmct
this organisation tried to attract small shopkeepers and farmers to

it's ranks and proclaimed an identity of interest of all producing groups.
4 The long-term policy of the Knights of Labour was "the replacement of
Capitalism by a, system of workers' co-operatives'.

In it's early days, much secrecy surrounded the Knights of Labour.

Y This was necessary in order to protect members from employers! reprisals,
as American employers in those times were pretty ruthless in dealing

with people whom they considered to be '"trouble - makers'. The leader

of the Knights of Labour bore the title "Grand Master Workman'", but as
the membership increased, the secrecy.was. gradually abandoned and dropped
altogether with the election of Terence V. Powderby as Grand Master Workman
in 1879. At this point it is appropriate to mention ancther organisation
which was in existance around this time, the Molly Maguires. However,
this organisation was confined to the Irish in the coal-fields of Penny-
sylvania whereas the Knights of Labour though'it had a high proportion

of unskilled and foreigh-born , appealed to a wider- spectrum of the
working people. Also, this was the era of great expansion of American
induétry, the era which produced such men as Rockefeller,Carnegie and
Pierrepoint Morgai.

1 The Knights of Labour confinued to expand and it reached its peak

in 1886 when it claimed a membership of 700,000. In May of that year
an event occurred which historians have called the Haymarket Riot. 1886
was a year of much Labour unrest in the U.S.A. . A sBtrike,called by
the Knights of Labour took place at the Mc Cormick Harvesting Machine Co.
in Chicago. On May 3rd police intervened in the strike in a brutal
manner and six people were killed. A protest meeting was héld in
Haymarket Sguare. This meeting was peaceful until a contingent of
police arrived to disperse it. Dynamite was thrown into the ranks of the
police killing a number of them. The. perpetrator of this act was never
identified,; but was most likely somebody belonging to a splinter group
or an agent - provocateur, and not a member of the Knights of Labour.

‘The' newspapers, however seized the opportunity to whip up-a hysterical
campaign against the Knights. 1886 saw the setting up of the more
moderate American Federation of Labour (A.F.L.) under the leadership
of Samuel Gampers. This organisation was mainly craft-based and confined
itself to matters of wages and conditions. By about 1889~'90 the A.F.L.
had superseded the Knights of Labour and became the main trade union body
in the U.8.A.. (in fact together with the C.L.0O. with which it amalgamated
in the late 1950!'s it still is). The Knights of Labour went into decline
but the organisation was still in existenne during the early part of
this Century. When James Connolly was in New York in 1905, there were
branches of the Kaights of Labour functioning there, especially among

! the dockworkers.
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The existence of a branch of the Knighte of Labour in Waterford
in 1892 raises some interesting questions. Who founded it 7,there
ig a strong possibility that it was a Waterford man who was a member
of the parent body in the U.S.A. and then came home and decided to
set up a branch here. If such was the case,who was he 7 Where did
the branch meet 7 Did they develop a policy geared to conditions in
Waterford at the time ? Another possibility is that this organ-
isation was established in Waterford by American seamen. Who knows?
The answers to these questicns if they can be found, would provide
the basis of an interesting article.

Re: Question on O' Sullivans at Rocisk, John Whittle writes :-

In my grandfather's papers there is an incomplete manuscript
entitled "The Strange Passing of an Irish Family - The O'Sullivans
of Ballylegget". The part dealing with their . "strange passing”'isl
unfortunately missing, but it seemgSto be connected somehow with
hunting, and the last of the family apparently died about 100 years
Ago. There is no mention of their origin, but they are described
as "middle landlords who led a gay lifecce..'" "Their mansion was
an imposing structure approached by wide drives from two roads.
Spending money on a lavish scale ....." No sources are given or time
indicated for this. The remainder of the existing pages consists
of anecdotes rclating to the O' Sullivans, apparently at the cend of
the 18th Century.

Re : Article and questions on Philip Barron, Mr. John Mulholland writes:

Philip Barron was a member of the Royal lrish Academy. They
should therefore have his mapgazine,front covers and all, which contained
illnstrations :of his "gothic" college. Ay background detail could
help to verify the cxact location. Perhaps the R.I.A. also have some
of ‘his papers

Re : his article"The Vanished Mediaeval Settlements at Templeybrick"
Mr. John Mulholland adds :-

In my first paragraph I referrcd to Mason's Parochial Survey
(from memory) simply to identify Bunmahon village's earlier name of
"Templeybrici Village'. As printed this point 4is lost and a mis-
etatement of fact results. I imagine the village namec "Bunmahon'
came into use as a counterbalance to the mining village of "Knock-
mahon". '

Also, the spclling of proper names was not quite right. The
0.8. use "Templeyurick™ for the townland and "Templeobrick!'"(all
ong -word) for the small island. -

Finally, T have since discoverced that the field immediately west
of Danes "Island" (which I suggcstedi to have been the hecadguarters
of the 0'Brics), has traditionally becn known as "Castle Ficild'".
Nobody remembers any castle there, nor have traces of it been found
in ploughing.




Katherine, the Countess of Ormonde, together with her husband
Piers, the 5th Earl, founded the famous Grammar school in Kilkenny
circa 1539, It was located in the West end of the churchyard attached
to St. Canice's Cathedral, Kilkenny. (On the site of this School now
stands the equally famous St. Canice's Library). The first Head -
master was a William Johnson. He was suceeded by Canon Peter White
(he 'was Prebendary of Mayne), a graduate of Oxford and Fellow of

Oriel College Ox .ord.

From this School while it was under the care of this famous
teacher came many distinguished men. The best known of these was
Richard Stanhurst, historian and uncle of James Ussher , the scholarly
Archbishop of Armagh. Richard Stanhurst gives the following descrip-~
tion of this notable man's method of training -

(A Plain & Perfect Description of Ireland 1577 by Richard Stanhurst,
quoted in Journal of Kilkenny Archaecological Society 1971)

"This gentleman's method in training up youth was rare and
aingular, framing the education according to the scholar's
vein. If he found him free, he would bridle him like a
wise Isocrates from his book: if he understood that he were
the worse for beating he would win him with rewards: if he
perceived him to be dull, he would spur him forward: finally
by interlacing study with recreation, sorrow with mirth,pain
with pleasure, sourness with sweetness, roughness with mildness,

he had so good success in schooling his pupils as in good
sooth I may boldly bide by it, that in the Realms of Ireland
was no Grammar school so good,in England I am assured none

better Y,

In 1565 Peter White gave up his teaching position and was made
Dean of Waterford. He was out of sympathy with the Eligzabethian
Settlement of Church Affairs and in 1570 was deprived for joining
the Church of Rome. Incidentally, the Grammar School went into
decline after his departure and ceased to exist as & school after the

fall of Kilkenny to Cromwell.

RE:"Burial Vault in 0ld Graveyard, Lady Lane" (DECIES }),
—— Fr. Ignatius O0.F.M. asks -

Mr. Hodge says of the water in the vault that it '"was very
clear and a sample taken was found to be one of the purest ever
tested by the local Health Authority". Could thia in fact be
the "spring'" of the Spring Garden ? Where exactly was this

Spring Garden and has anything been written about it 7

—

THE SPAMISH CONNECTION

Does anybody know where to get information about Waterford's trade
with Spesin up to about I750 ? (This is needed fora thesis)



NZCKREY WHTIT LE puD 48 1428 BYE - ELECTION

By John Whittle
The_late Nickey Whittle was the Sinn Féin ‘Director of Elections
in Waterford City in 1918. There were, of course, two elections in
Waterford ir 1918. Cne ves the Bye-Election in February of that
year, brougii about by the death of Johr Fedmond M.P.leader of the
Home Rule Pariy. "ae ofuer =3 the General Zlectiion in December.
It is the form~r which we will de "~ with here as it was probably the :
most inpor*ant, judsiang that Linn Fein threw ail itd éfforts into this !
Election and all of ite leading meombuers including De Vaiera, Griffith
and Count Fiunlete pexicipated in the crmpaign. Nickev himself ferms

1

it as "the greazest hurun dogfiglht I have ever experieaced'.

e ——— —
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It ic interesting to note thet as carly as 1917 Nickey was ordered ’
to ascertain roughly ihe nunber ¢f cheep and goats owned by farmers who F

were friendly dispasad to the "erublicon movement around Kilmacthomas,

o3

3

in case conscription might be <nforced. The Ccmeragh mountains would
be the obviouas plecs to fall r-.c¢!l! upon and be hidden rrom the
Authorities. Alro 30ft¢ Darrcils off oatmezl etc. were nurchased by
the Wateriord Pranch of firv Tois o & Jirrt ~tep towaras building a
food supply for m metreat inlo tas wounloinsg.
) _ ]
This attitiade ha»?y endrarsd farr #cin Lo the Acthorities. The L

Redmonditas were protent~. by the 7.1.0. and acéording to Nickey were
even allowed to create buvbenoos without fear of being arrested.

On the otisr henl, fdini ¥oin vrere "protected" by about 700 Veolunteers
in Waterford, dr=win fron rsuy partec of the cnubiry. Alsc, many

prominent men in ti.g campeign. _neluding Nickey carried a gun thruugh-
out the cempaizn , since L1lng.s coanilo g2t go rough one might have to
defend cnes life.

One incidont regerding “he houtilitierns between the two sides Nickey
remerbors well, when De Valera started canvassing one mocrning in the cit)
one of the locc L Sinp Tein Ludentive deeided to aund a body-guard of
four w'th him, 3ince par* of #ho ares was a known hostile one. A few
minutes : *t..» starting out De Velern returned, very angry, saying that
he had no need »f a boay-gusrd in any part of the country, and this
must not Lappen again. However, after he had gone the body-guard was
sent out again ¢fter him, ™t were tolé to keep their distance.  About
twenty minutes loter De Valera retvrned currounded by his hody-guards.
An attenn’ had oi course boen macde to assault him, and one wonders how
different the course of Irishk history could have been if they had not
followed iim. At auny rats, be never travelled without a body—g&ard aga

Sinn Fein , cf couree, lost and Nickey atiributes this to the
extraordinary loyalty th~ pe.ple of Waterford had for the Redmond family
He gives as an example %tl.e "defecXion" from Fenianism of the like of
Captain Kavanagh, the man who had brought the "Lrin's Hope" from
America t¢ Dungarvan in 2.867. Ee2 vas then living in Pascage East and
apparently o coniirmed Redmoandite, o r TF o«

On the oiher band, sone days before the Election Waterford was
treated Yo the sigbt oi a Sinn Fein Flection postser adorning the funnel
of an American gun bhoat on o visit Lo the port. Apparently, sailors
from it had met scms Pepublicans in a pub and had been sufficiently
impressed to espouse the cause wilh this unusuvel method of pronaganda .
Even the captain connived, and “h21 isited by Constable Sullivan of
the R.L.C. to remove it, he gave the policernan five seconds to get
off Americon Territory



written by Nickey dealing with his experiences in the Republican
Movement from 1917 to 1921. The other- and only - copy of it is locked
away in a  vault in Dublin and will be opened in 1988. This statement
and many others like it, were originally collected by the Military
Bureau . of Irish History which closed down in 1958. 1t was agreed
then that such "Statements''would be made available to students of Irish
history in 30 years time when the principal-"actors" would have passed
on.

Nickey's account gives details of the type of intimidation
practised on the voters and of the resultant violence. He quotes
Griffith as telling him afterwards that the 1918 Bye-Electicn in
Waterford '"has been the roughest election in Irish history, not
excepting -the famous Galway Election'w-a suitable-epitaph !

"ROMWELL'S ¢ ME ) o
'CROMWELL'S PLANTATION ' MEASURE By J. S. Carroll

It has sometimes been suggested that the adoption of "plantation
measure'" in carrying out the mid 17th Century surveys on which the
Cromwellian land settlement depended , was a device to grab more land
than an adventurer was entitled to on the face value of his debenture
or a soldier on the amount of his arrears of pay. But this is not
truee. The surveys showed the amount of forfeited land that was avail-
able for distribution and the total claim im-terms of money was already
krown.  Sinde, with certain exeeptions determined beforehand, all
forfeited land was to be taken up, one way or another, it was simply =a
matter of dividing the one into the other, irrespective of what land
unit was used.

There was no common agreement on weights and measures in those days.
The Romans had had standards preserved in their temples but these had
been lost for at least 1,000 years and no attempt to replace them by
national, much less international standards would be made until 1758.
It is not. surprising therefore, that variation had grown up in the matter
of land measurement as between England and Ireland. The (undefined) foot
was used by both and both aocepted that 40 square perches made a Rood
and 4 Roods an Acre, but the difference was in their concept of a Perch
or Pole. An Fnglish Perch was, and still id, d mé&Bure of 163 feet ,
hut an Irish Perch was 21 feetl.

It would seem that the Irish custom was-long-established and had
been used ip the earlier 17th Century surveys under Strafford, so it
was quite natural that General Fleetwood and his fellow Commissioners
should use it also. His recorded instructions to the inquisitors fer
the Civil Survey (1654 =-'56). include an injunction to estimate the

number of Acres in each holding '"according to the measure of 21 feet

to the Pole and 160 Poles to the Acre'. On this basis, the Irish or
Plantation Acre works out at 7,840 Square Yards as against 4,840 for
the Statute Acre -_a_ratio of 1.62 £0 Ju cov e cmns
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OLD = WATERFORD. SOCIETY

AUTUMN & WINTER PROGRAMME 1976 - 1977.

(Please note that no- other notice of theée‘meetings will be sent)

FRIDAY 15th Oct.

FRIDAY é9th Oct.

FRIDAY 12th Nov.

FRIDAY 26th Hev.

sumbgzvlzth Deo.

FBIDAY.ZIBt Jan.

t

BARLY FEBRUARY'77 -

"Irish Glass in the nineteenth century".

A illastrated lecture by Mrs. Mary Boydell.

In Teachers' Centre at 8,00 p.m.

"Monuments of tha French Church"
& lecture by Mr.. Julian Walton.
"In Teachers' Centre at 8.00 p.m.

"The Irish Monastic Period". -
An illustrated lecture by Dr. Maura de Paor.
In Teachers' Centre at 8,00 p.m.

"The Quakera in Waterford"
A lecture by Miss E, Bennis.
In Teachers' Centre at 8.00 p.m.

Annual lunch of the 01d Waterford ﬂpciety.

In Tower Hotel at 1,00 p.m. " Cost £2.50,

"Irish High Crosses"
A lécture by Mr. Peter Harbison.
* Teachers' Centre at 8.00 p.m..

."Tﬁelﬂorman; in Ireland"”.

A lecture by Prof. F.X. Martin.
Teachers' Centre at 8.00 p.m,
Decies, Number 4 to be published -,
(Will be sent free only to paid-up members
of 01d Waterford Society)

We need help with the next issues of Decies. GSee Editcrial,!

and ring or write.
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